Chebeague Island School Handbook

Table of Contents

<u>Topic</u>	<u>Page</u>
Chebeague Island School Mission	1
Vision Statement	1
Expectations	2
Confidentiality	2
Academic Programs at CIS	2
Health and Safety	3
Medication	4
Clothing Guidelines	4
Transportation	4
Bus Rules	5
Field/Extra Curricular Trips	5
No School Announcements	6
Attendance/Dismissal	6
School Lunch	6
Homework	7
Volunteers	7
Contact Information	7
Annual Notifications	
Title IX Provisions	8
Harassment and Sexual Harassment	9
F.E.R.P.A	10
Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment	11
Tobacco Free Schools	13
Asbestos Notification	13
Teacher Qualifications	14
Annual Pesticide Notification	14
Student Computer and Internet Use and "Cyber Safety"	15
Student Computer and Internet Use Rules	16
Special Education	20
Child Find	21
Restraint and Seclusion	21

CHEBEAGUE ISLAND SCHOOL

Welcome to the Chebeague Island School and the community of learners that makes this an exciting, safe and fun place to be. This handbook is designed to provide important information to parents and students. Please take a few minutes to read through it and become acquainted with the information. Thank you, and again, welcome to our school and the new school year.

CHEBEAGUE ISLAND SCHOOL MISSION

The Chebeague Island School has a special commitment to nurturing and respecting each student's individual abilities, while also challenging students to accomplish things they never dreamed they were capable of doing. Through hands-on experiences emphasized by intergenerational relationships from the island community and island resources, the Chebeague Island School will strengthen students' abilities to contribute to a positive and productive attitude, with respect to others and our environment.

VISION STATEMENT

The Chebeague Island School values social learning, responsibility, pride, quality and mutual respect. The Chebeague Island School encompasses an active, independent, community of learners of all ages, providing resources for unlimited opportunities in a safe, comfortable and inclusive environment. All students are encouraged to develop their natural gifts and academic skills to the highest level possible in a supportive atmosphere that values and respects individuals.

To accomplish this mission, the Chebeague Island School community will collaborate to:

- Use effective instructional practices and provide professional development to assure that all students meet or exceed standards,
- Ensure a safe and respectful environment where all feel a sense of belonging,
- Promote parental participation as fundamental to each student's success.

EXPECTATIONS

Students

- We expect students to come to school ready to learn.
- We expect students to be responsible for their actions.
- We expect students to show respect for themselves and others.
- We expect students to show respect for our school building, materials and grounds.

Parents

- We expect all parents to play an active and supportive part in their child's learning.
- We expect all parents to be active members of our school community.

Teachers and Staff

- We expect teachers and staff to do their best to support the learning of all students.
- We expect teachers and staff to know and respect all members of the Chebeague Island School community.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Every member of the school staff understands that being part of our island community has many benefits. One of those is the ability to know and interact with many members of the community on a regular basis. Every member of the school staff recognizes that our students and their families have a right to privacy that is protected by federal law and school personnel will not share confidential information concerning students and their families during interactions in the larger island community.

ACADEMIC PROGRAMS AT CIS

The school is normally organized into three classrooms: Pre-K, Kindergarten to grade 2, and grade 3 to grade 5. In both the K-2 and 3-5 classrooms, a full time teacher supports our students. In Pre-K, there is one part-time teacher. There are usually two Educational Technicians who work as needed among the three classrooms.

All students will be provided with the opportunity to meet School Department standards in reading, writing, mathematics, science and social studies as part of their regular school program. In addition, students participate weekly in art,

music, technology, Spanish, P.E. and library. CIS has a part-time licensed Occupational Therapist and Certified School Guidance Counselor who provides a variety of programs for students and families that support the development of social skills.

Feedback on student progress is done through regular classroom newsletters, progress reports in January and June and parent teacher conferences in November and April. Please feel free to contact your child's teacher at any time if you have questions regarding your child's progress.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 1. No child should be sent to school if there are any symptoms of illness present such as a fever or rash. This is to assure the quick recovery of the sick child and to protect other children.
- 2. A child may be sent home if there is any suspicion of a contagious disease.
- 3. The school nurse maintains all health records and conducts routine screenings. In case of a child's illness or accident at school, the school will contact the parent. If a student needs to be sent home due to illness, an adult will stay with the student in a quiet place until the parent or guardian is able to come and pick the student up.
- 4. Please be sure to include emergency numbers to call when you complete the Student Information Form; a work number, baby-sitter and a neighbor's number would be helpful. Please notify the school office of any changes to those contacts during the school year. If your child is involved in an accident that, in the judgment of the school personnel requires medical attention, you will be contacted using the information supplied by you on the Student Information Form.
- 5. If students are well enough to attend school, it is expected that they are well enough to go outside for recess. Please make sure that they come to school with appropriate attire for outdoor recess.
- 6. As per Maine State regulations, all students are required to have medical shots to attend school, or have a yearly waiver completed and on file at school.
- 7. If your child is to be excused for medical reasons from any class or activity, including P.E., the school requires a written statement from a doctor or nurse.
- 8. We encourage good nutrition in snacks and lunches.
- 9. Regular fire drills and lockdowns will be conducted.
- 10. Please do not bring valuables to school.

MFDICATION

It is desirable that parents should administer any medication to their child at school when necessary. However, in the event that this is not possible, it is the practice of the Chebeague Island School that medication may be administered by school personnel with prior written permission by a parent/quardian.

CLOTHING GUIDELINES

The students have P.E. once a week and recess twice a day. We encourage them to wear clothing that allows them to participate in these opportunities to run and play freely, unencumbered by inappropriate clothing and/or shoes. In the colder months, they go outside and should have warm outerwear, hats and mittens. We encourage students to wear clothing that covers their midriffs. When girls wear skirts, jumpers and dresses, it's appropriate to wear leggings, shorts or tights as well. Clothing that advertises tobacco, alcohol, drugs, sex or any other prohibited or discriminatory behavior that school policy prohibits is not allowed.

TRANSPORTATION

Bus

The driver of our school bus is charged with a heavy responsibility for the safety of the children in his/her care. The right of students to ride on the school bus is dependent upon their behavior and observance of rules pertaining to proper conduct. The driver and any substitute drivers are authorized to enforce these rules and to make suggestions in line with good citizenship. The driver may assign seats on the bus.

Meeting the Bus:

- 1. All students must be on time.
- 2. Students walking on a roadway to a bus stop should always walk on the left shoulder facing traffic.
- 3. Students should walk when crossing the road.
- 4. Students shall not run along side of the bus when it is moving.
- 5. Students should stand well away from the shoulder of the road in an orderly group while waiting for the bus.

BUS RULES

The rights of students to ride the bus is conditional on their behavior and observance of rules and regulations.

- All students shall report on time to their designated "School Bus Stop".
 Due to set schedules, the bus will not be permitted to wait for tardy students.
- 2. The driver is in full charge of the bus and the students. Students will obey the directions of the driver.
- 3. If the driver wishes, he/she may assign seats.
- 4. All students shall be treated with respect and shall show respect for each other, the driver and others who may be on the bus.
- 5. When the bus is in motion, students will not stand, move about, or extend arms or heads out of the windows.
- 6. Nothing shall be thrown from or within the bus.
- Any deliberate damage done to any part of the bus shall be paid for by the student(s) and/or parent(s)/guardian(s) of the student(s) involved.
- 8. Students are allowed to talk on the bus provided the conversation is appropriate and the driver's instructions can be heard. If the conversation is not appropriate or the noise level becomes excessive, the driver may require silence.
- 9. Students may use music players with headphones. However, music should not be so loud that it's audible to fellow riders, and speakers are not permitted at all.

Students will not be permitted to get off at any stop other than their assigned stop unless the driver receives permission from the school, a parent or guardian. If the student does not have permission and parental contact can not be made, the student will be brought back to the school.

FIELD/EXTRA CURRICULAR TRIPS

The Chebeague Island School provides properly supervised field trips for educational purposes. Private vehicles approved by the Superintendent generally provide transportation for off-island field trips.

Due to the unique nature of our island school, some field trips may require an earlier start or a later return. School personnel will arrange transportation with the CTC and will notify parents of any changes. All field trips are chaperoned by staff and parents.

The School Department feels a heavy responsibility for the safety and well-being of students involved in trips of this nature. For this reason, students are expected to observe the following guidelines.

- 1. Students will respond to the direct supervision of the teacher and are expected to behave appropriately at all times.
- 2. Following an activity, everyone is expected to return to school on the bus unless a parent gives written permission to the teacher and obtains permission to take his/her sonor daughter from the site of the activity.
- 3. Students are expected to stay with their group at all times as instructed by the teacher in charge.
- 4. All bus regulations outlined in the transportation section are in effect.

NO SCHOOL ANNOUNCEMENTS

In case of inclement weather conditions, please listen to local TV stations for school cancellations. Parents can go to TV websites to sign up for automatic notification of No School Announcements.

ATTENDANCE/DISMISSAL

For your child's safety, it is required that he/she arrive at school no earlier than 8:00 a.m., because supervision is not available before then.

School is in session from 8:15 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Early Release days end at 11:30 a.m. Students are considered tardy if they arrive at school later than 8:15 a.m. We expect that all students will arrive on time and be ready to learn.

If your child will be absent from school, please call the school on the morning of the absence. Please inform us of anticipated absences with a note or call to the office.

Students who are to be dismissed early are requested to notify the teacher with a parental note or phone call. Please be aware that when students are tardy or are dismissed prior to the end of the school day, they are missing valuable instructional time from the classroom. Phone calls by parents changing their child's afternoon plans must be received prior to 2:30 pm.

SCHOOL LUNCH

During the school renovation, the hot lunch program will not be in operation because a state approved kitchen is not available for storing food, preparing meals and cleaning up after meals. Students must bring their own lunches and snacks, school lunches will not be provided.

HOMFWORK

The Chebeague Island School recognizes the value of homework in cultivating academic achievement and good study habits. Reading at home by your child, to your child and with your child is encouraged at all grade levels! Children in all grades may be given schoolwork to do at home.

Homework assignments provide opportunities for our students to:

- Develop good study habits,
- Develop a sense of responsibility for task completion,
- Learn time management,
- · Reinforce skills,
- Extend or enrich their classroom experiences.

VOLUNTEERS

Parent and community involvement are part of the school's mission. We welcome the time and resources that parents and community members bring to our school. The teachers find volunteer assistance in their classroom invaluable. If you have time, special talents, or interesting experiences to share, please contact the classroom teacher or the school office.

Volunteers at CIS help teachers and students in many ways, including:

- Assisting with the math instruction,
- Reading with and to students,
- Accompanying students on field trips,
- Sharing expertise that supplements the curriculum,
- Assisting in projects.

Contact Information

The best way to contact the school is by calling **846-4162**. Our website at **www.chebeagueislandschool.net** is updated regularly and includes most of the information that goes home to parents such as field trip information, the school calendar, teacher newsletters and School Committee information. Some schedules to remember as as follows:

Administrative Secretary's schedule: Monday thru Friday 7:30 - 12:30 Superintendent/Principal's schedule: Tuesdays & Fridays 7:45 - 3:45

ANNUAL NOTIFICATIONS

Title IX Provisions

Title IX provides that "No person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, with certain exceptions. Title IX applies to discrimination based on sex, is limited to education programs and activities and includes employment."

In accordance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Public Law 92-138, and amendments thereto Public Law 93-563 and of the codes of federal regulations, Title 45, Part 86, which implements those laws, it is hereby declared formally that it is the policy of the Chebeague Island School Department, and those of its employees, that there shall be no discrimination of any education program or activity at the Chebeague Island School Department. Inquiries, complaints and other communications relative to this policy and to Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and other public laws and federal regulation concerned with non-discrimination on the basis of sex shall be addressed to:

Mary Holt

Chebeague Island School

14 School House Rd.

Chebeague Island, ME 04017

The above named has been designated by the School Committee to coordinate the Department's efforts to comply with Title IX. Any complaints or alleged infractions of the policy, law or applicable regulations will be processed through the following procedure:

Complaint and Grievance Procedure:

- Any complaint from, or on behalf of any person employed by or served by the school department shall be communicated to the designated person.
- The designated person shall investigate the complaint and attempt to resolve the issue.
- If the issue is not resolved, the complaint shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the Superintendent who will consider the evidence

- provided by the aggrieved and/or their designee and rule on any corrective action to be taken.
- Any appeal from the decision of the Superintendent may be taken to the School Committee within ten days and the School Committee will render a decision within sixty days of the appeal after hearing evidence in the case.
- Appeal of the School Committee's decision may be brought within ten days to the Federal Office of Civil Rights, and appeal from its decision may be brought in Federal Courts, whose decision shall be final.

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with the requirements of Section 86.9 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulation.)

Harassment and Sexual Harassment

Harassment of students because of race, color, sex, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability is prohibited. Such conduct is a violation of School Committee policy and may constitute illegal discrimination under state and federal laws.

Harassment

Harassment includes, but is not limited to, verbal abuse based on race, color, sex, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors or pressure to engage in sexual activity, physical contact of a sexual nature, gestures, comments or other physical, written or verbal conduct that is gender-based that interferes with a student's education. School employees, students, volunteers and visitors to the school and any other person with whom students may interact, in order to pursue school activities, are required to refrain from such conduct.

Harassment or sexual harassment of students by other students is considered grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion. The Superintendent will determine appropriate sanctions for harassment of students by persons other than school employees and students.

The school administration will investigate complaints of harassment in accordance with the Harassment Complaint Procedure.

F.E.R.P.A.

The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students over 18 years of age ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's educational records. Those rights are:

- The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the District receives a request for access. Parents or eligible students should submit to the school principal (or appropriate school official) a written request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The principal or designated official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate or misleading. Parents or eligible students may ask the Chebeague Island School Department to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate or misleading. They should write the school principal, clearly identifying the part of the records that they want changed and specify why it is misleading or inaccurate. If the District decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the District will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.
- The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A school official is a person employed by the Department as an administrator, supervisor, or instructor or support staff member (including health and medical staff and law enforcement personnel); a person serving on the School Committee; a person or company with whom the Department has contracted to perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant or therapist); or a parent of a student serving on an

official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate education interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Upon request, the Department discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.

 The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the School Department to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Ave. S.W. Washington, D.C. 20202-5920

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with Regulations: 34 CFR Section 99.7)

Notification of Rights Under the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA)

PPRA affords parents and students who are 18 or emancipated minors ("eligible students") certain rights regarding the conduct of surveys, collection and use of information for marketing purposes and certain physical exams in the school. These include the right to:

<u>Consent:</u> before students are required to submit to a survey that concerns one or more of the following protected areas if the survey is funded in whole or in part by a program of the U.S. Department of Education:

- Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or student's parent,
- Mental or psychological problems of the student or student's family,
- Sexual behavior or attitudes,
- Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior,
- Critical appraisals of others with whom respondents have close family ties,
- Legally recognized privileged relationships, such as with lawyers, doctors or ministers,

- Religious practices, affiliations or beliefs of the student or parents, or
- Income, other than as required by law to determine program eligibility.

Receive notice and an opportunity to opt a student out of:

- Any other protected information survey, regardless of funding,
- Any non-emergency, invasive physical exam or screening required as a condition of attendance, administered by the school or its agent, and not necessary to protect the immediate health and safety of a student, except for hearing, vision or scoliosis screenings, or any physical exam or screening permitted or required under State law, and.
- Activities involving collection, disclosure or use of personal information obtained from students for marketing or to sell or otherwise distribute the information to others.

Inspect: upon request and before administration or use,

- Protected information surveys of students,
- Instruments used to collect personal information from students for any of the above marketing, sales or other distribution purposes, and,
- Instructional material used as part of the educational curriculum.

The Chebeague Island School Department has developed and adopted policies regarding these rights, as well as the protection of student privacy in the administration of protected surveys and the collection, disclosure or use of personal information.

The Chebeague Island School Department will notify parents/guardians of the following activities and provide an opportunity to opt a student out of participating in:

- Collection, disclosure or use of personal information for marketing or other distribution,
- Administration of any protected information survey not funded in whole or in part by the DOE,
- Any non-emergency, invasive physical examination or screening as described above.

Parents/Guardians who believe their rights have been violated may file a complaint with:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Ave., SW Washington, D.C. 20202-5920

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with 20 U.S.C. Sec. 1232h, Regulations: 34 CFR Part 98)

Tobacco Free Schools

Smoking and use of all tobacco products is prohibited within the Chebeague Island School or on any school property. Possession of any tobacco products by students is prohibited at all times within the Chebeague Island School and on all school property. Students found smoking, using tobacco products or in possession of any tobacco products on the school grounds, will be subject to disciplinary consequences up to and including the possibility of suspension.

Asbestos Notification

The Chebeague Island School has been inspected for the presence of Asbestos Containing Building Materials (ACBMs). A written plan for the management of these materials has been developed. This plan notes the type and location of ACBMs within the school. The management plan is an outline of operational procedures designed for the proper maintenance and safety of all people who work, study or are otherwise present in the building to minimize the exposure to asbestos hazards. A copy of this plan is available for inspection at the Chebeague Island School Office.

The condition of all Asbestos Containing Building Materials will be semiannually subject to surveillance. All contractors working within the Chebeague Island School shall be informed of the location and condition of all ACBMs.

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with 40 CFR, Part 763.)

Teacher Qualifications

The Chebeague Island School may receive federal funds to support various educational programs and services to children. As such, we are required to notify the parent/guardians of each student that they may request, and the school will provide, information regarding the professional qualifications of classroom teachers.

Any parent/guardian wishing information concerning staff qualifications should contact the Principal at 846-4162.

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with Section 6311 of NCLB Act.)

Annual Pesticide Notification

Because pesticides pose risks, the Chebeague Island School uses an alternative approach to merely applying pesticides. Control of insects and weeds at our school focuses on making the school and grounds an unfavorable environment for pests. Through routine maintenance, proper food storage and sanitation, we will reduce or eliminate available food and water sources for pests. We will routinely monitor the school and school grounds for the presence of pests. Sometimes, however, pesticides may be necessary to control a pest problem. If that becomes necessary, the school will use the lowest risk products available. Notification need not be given for pesticide applications recognized by law to pose little or no risk of exposure to students or staff. If higher risk pesticides must be used, notice will be given to students, staff and parents/guardians at least two days before any planned pesticide application. Pesticide application notices will also be posted in or on school grounds.

The school keeps records of pesticide applications and information about any pesticides used. You may review these records, as well as obtain a complete copy of the Pesticide in Schools regulation (CMR 01-026, Chapter 27) by contacting the Principal at 846-4162.

For further information about pests, pesticides and your right to know, you may contact the Board of Pesticide Control at 207-287-2731.

(This notification is published to achieve compliance with CMR 01-026, Chapter 27.)

STUDENT COMPUTER AND INTERNET USE AND "CYBER SAFETY"

The Chebeague Island School computers, network, and Internet access are provided to support the educational mission of the school and to enhance the curriculum and learning opportunities for students and school staff. This policy and the accompanying rules also apply to computers, ipads, or laptops issued to students, whether in use at school or off school premises.

Compliance with the school unit's policies and rules concerning computer use is mandatory. Students who violate these policies and rules may have their computer privileges limited, suspended, or revoked. Such violations may also result in disciplinary action, referral to law enforcement, and/or legal action.

Chebeague Island School computers remain under the control, custody, and supervision of the school unit at all times. The school unit monitors all computer and Internet activity by students. Students have no expectation of privacy in their use of school computers, whether used on school property or elsewhere.

"CYBER SAFETY"

The Chebeague Island School utilizes filtering technology designed to block materials that are obscene or harmful to minors, and child pornography. The District takes precautions to supervise student use of the Internet, but parents should be aware that the District couldn't reasonably prevent all instances of inappropriate computer use by students in violation of School Committee policies and rules, including access to objectionable materials and communication with persons outside of the school. The Chebeague Island School is not responsible for the accuracy or quality of information that students obtain through the Internet.

In the interest of student safety ("cyber safety"), The Chebeague Island School also educates students and parents about online behavior, including interacting on social networking sites and chat rooms, the dangers of hacking, and issues surrounding "sexting" and cyberbullying awareness and response. The Superintendent shall be responsible for integrating cyber safety training and "digital citizenship" into the curriculum and for documenting Internet safety training.

The Superintendent shall be responsible for implementing this policy and the accompanying acceptable use rules. The Superintendent/designee may implement additional administrative procedures or school rules consistent with School Committee policy to govern the day-to-day management and operations of the school unit's computer system.

STUDENT COMPUTER AND INTERNET USE RULES

These rules accompany School Committee policy IJNDB (Student Computer and Internet Use). Each student is responsible for his/her actions and activities involving school unit computers, networks, and Internet services, and for his/her computer files, passwords, and accounts.

These rules provide general guidance concerning the use of the school unit's computers and examples of prohibited uses. The rules do not attempt to describe every possible prohibited activity by students. Students, parents, and school staff who have questions about whether a particular activity is prohibited are encouraged to contact a building administrator.

A. Acceptable Use

The school unit's computers, networks, and Internet services are provided for educational purposes and research consistent with the school unit's educational mission, curriculum, and instructional goals.

All Committee policies, school rules, and expectations concerning student conduct and communications apply when students are using computers, whether the use is on or off school property.

Students are also expected to comply with all specific instructions from school administrators, school staff or volunteers when using the school unit's computers.

B. Consequences for Violation of Computer Use Policy and Rules

Compliance with the school unit's policies and rules concerning computer use is mandatory. Students who violate these policies and rules may, after having been given the opportunity to respond to an alleged violation, have their computer privileges limited, suspended, or revoked.

Such violations may also result in disciplinary action, referral to law enforcement, and or legal action.

The Superintendent/Principal shall have final authority to decide whether a student's privileges will be limited, suspended or revoked based upon the circumstances of the particular case, the student's prior disciplinary record, and any other relevant factors.

C. Prohibited Uses

Examples of unacceptable uses of school unit computers that are expressly prohibited include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Accessing Inappropriate Materials Accessing, submitting, posting, publishing, forwarding, downloading, scanning or displaying defamatory, abusive, obscene, vulgar, sexually explicit, sexually suggestive, threatening, discriminatory, harassing and/or illegal materials;
- 2. **Illegal Activities** Using the school unit's computers, networks, and Internet services for any illegal activity or in violation of any School Committee policy or school rules. The school unit assumes no responsibility for illegal activities of students while using school computers;
- 3. Violating Copyrights Copying, downloading or sharing any type of copyrighted materials (including music or films) without the owner's permission (see Committee policy/procedure EGAD Copyright Compliance). The school unit assumes no responsibility for copyright violations by students;
- 4. Copying Software Copying or downloading software without the authorization of the Superintendent/Principal. Unauthorized copying of software is illegal and may subject the copier to substantial civil and criminal penalties. The school unit assumes no responsibility for illegal software copying by students;
- 5. **Plagiarism** Representing as one's own work any materials obtained on the Internet (such as term papers, articles, music,

- etc.). When Internet sources are used in student work, the author, publisher, and website must be identified;
- 6. Non-School-Related Uses Using the school unit's computers, networks, and Internet services for non-school-related purposes such as private financial gain, commercial, advertising or solicitation purposes, or for any other personal use not connected with the educational program or assignments;
- 7. **Misuse of Passwords/Unauthorized Access** Sharing passwords, using other users' passwords, and accessing or using other users' accounts;
- 8. Malicious Use/Vandalism Any malicious use, disruption or harm to the school unit's computers, networks, and Internet services, including but not limited to hacking activities and creation/uploading of computer viruses; and
- 9. Unauthorized Access to Blogs/Chat Rooms Accessing chat rooms or news groups without specific authorization from the supervising teacher.

D. No Expectation of Privacy

Chebeague Island School computers remain under the control, custody, and supervision of the school unit at all times. Students have no expectation of privacy in their use of school computers, including email, stored files, and Internet access logs.

E. Compensation for Losses, Costs, and/or Damages

The student and his/her parents are responsible for compensating the school unit for any losses, costs, or damages incurred by the school unit for violations of Committee policies and rules while the student is using school unit computers, including the cost of investigating such violations. The school unit assumes no responsibility for any unauthorized charges or costs incurred by a student while using school unit computers.

F. Student Security

A student is not allowed to reveal his/her full name, address or telephone number, social security number, or other personal information on the Internet without prior permission from a teacher. Students should never agree to meet people they have contacted through the Internet without parental permission. Students should inform their teacher if they access information or messages that are dangerous, inappropriate, or make them uncomfortable in any way.

G. System Security

The security of the school unit's computers, networks, and Internet services is a high priority. Any student who identifies a security problem must notify his/her teacher immediately. The student shall not demonstrate the problem to others or access unauthorized material. Any user who attempts to breach system security, causes a breach of system security, or fails to report a system security problem shall be subject to disciplinary and/or legal action, in addition to having his/her computer privileges limited, suspended, or revoked.

H. Additional Rules for Laptops Issued to Students

- 1. Laptops are loaned to students as an educational tool and are only authorized for use in completing school assignments.
- 2. Before a laptop is issued to a student, the student must sign the school's "acceptable use" agreement. Parents are required to attend an informational meeting before a laptop will be issued to their child.
- 3. Students are responsible for the proper care of laptops at all times, whether on or off school property, including costs associated with repairing or replacing the laptop. The CISD may offer an insurance program for parents to cover replacement costs and/or repair costs for damages not covered by the laptop warranty. Parents who choose not to purchase insurance should be aware that they are responsible for any costs associated with loss, theft, or damage to a laptop issued to their child.

- 4. If a laptop is lost or stolen, this must be reported to Superintendent/Principal immediately and, if stolen, to the local law enforcement authority as well.
- 5. The School Committee's policy and rules concerning computer and Internet use apply to the use of laptops at any time or place, on or off school property. Students are responsible for obeying any additional rules concerning care of laptops issued by school staff.
- 6. Violation of policies or rules governing the use of computers, or any careless use of a laptop may result in a student's laptop being confiscated and/or a student only being allowed to use the laptop under the direct supervision of school staff. The student will also be subject to disciplinary action for any violations of School Committee policies or school rules.
- 7. Parents will be informed of their child's login password. Parents are responsible for supervising their child's use of the laptop and Internet access when in use at home.
- 8. Without teacher permission, the laptop may only be used by the student to whom it is assigned.
- 9. Laptops must be returned in acceptable working order at the end of the school year or whenever requested by school staff.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Special education is governed by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and is defined as "specially designed instruction, at no cost to parents, to meet the unique needs of a child with a disability."

In Maine, the rule chapter that is specific to the education of children with disabilities is Maine Department of Education Regulations, Chapter 101, Maine Unified Special Education Regulation Birth to Age Twenty. If you would like to learn more about special education services, please call Mary Holt at the school, 846-4162.

CHILD FIND

The Chebeague Island School Department has a duty to locate, evaluate and identify any child residing in the District who qualifies for Special Education services or Section 504 accommodations and services. Children eligible for Special Education include those children with disabilities who have autism, deaf-blindness, emotional disturbance, hearing impairment, intellectual disability, multiple disabilities, orthopedic impairment, other health impairment, specific learning disability, speech or language impairment, traumatic brain injury, visual impairment, or developmental delay and who, because of such impairment, need special education services. Children eligible for Section 504 accommodations or services include those children who have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major life activity.

If you suspect your child has a disability and may need special education services or 504 accommodations, or if you would like additional information, please contact your child's teacher, or call Michael Pulsifer, Principal at the school, 846-4162.

RESTRAINT AND SECLUSION

In accordance with Chapter 33, the Chebeague Island School will annually provide an overview and updated awareness information to all staff, including contracted providers, regarding the content of this rule along with any local policies or procedures related to the use of physical restraint and seclusion. If any parent would like more information on this topic, please contact Michael Pulsifer, Principal, at the school, 846-4162.